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Information provided by Dr. Bailey
indicates this human remain was one of
many distributed during the mourning
period for Queen Emma Kaleleonalani
Rooke. Following the death of a greatly
respected leader, Native Hawaiian
mourners would contribute small
scalplocks to be worn throughout the
community during a mourning period.
After the mourning period, the leader
would be interred with these scalplocks
of mourners. Consultation evidence
presented by Hui Mālama I Nā Kūpuna
’O Hawai’i Nei indicates this human
remain was ‘‘intended to accompany
Queen Emma Kaleleonalani Rooke to
heaven.’’

Based on the above mentioned
information, officials of the Santa Cruz
City Museum of Natural History have
determined that, pursuant to 25 U.S.C.
3001 (3)(A), the one object listed above
is reasonably believed to be an item
exclusively made for burial purposes
and therefore considered an associated
funerary object. Officials of the Santa
Cruz City Museum of Natural History
have also determined that, pursuant to
25 U.S.C. 3001 (2), there is a
relationship of shared group identity
which can be reasonably traced between
this associated funerary object and Hui
Mālama I Nā Kūpuna ’O Hawai’i Nei
and the Maui/Lanai’i Islands Burial
Council.

This notice has been sent to officials
of Hui Mālama I Nā Kūpuna ’O Hawai’i
Nei, Maui/Lana’i Islands Burial Council,
and the Office of Hawaiian Affairs.
Representatives of any other Indian tribe
or Native Hawaiian organization that
believes itself to be culturally affiliated
with this associated funerary objects
should contact Ms. Sally Legakis,
Registrar, Santa Cruz City Museum of
Natural History, 1305 E. Cliff drive,
Santa Cruz, CA 95062, telephone (408)
429–3760, before May 13, 1996.
Repatriation of the associated funerary
object may begin after that date if no
additional claimants come forward.
Dated: April 5, 1996.

Veletta Canouts,

Acting Departmental Consulting
Archeologist, Deputy Chief, Archeology &
Ethnography Program.

[FR Doc. 96–9131 Filed 4–11–96; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4310–70–F

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Notice of Lodging of Stipulated
Agreement and Order Pursuant to the
Clean Water Act

In accordance with Departmental
policy, 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby

given that a proposed Stipulated
Agreement and Order in United States
v. District of Columbia, Civil Action No.
96–669, was lodged on April 5, 1996
with the United States District Court for
the District of Columbia. The proposed
Stipulated Agreement and Order
resolves the claims brought in a
Complaint filed the same day under the
Clean Water Act (‘‘Act’’) against the
District of Columbia, which owns and
operates the Blue Plains Wastewater
Treatment Works facility in
Washington, D.C.

The proposed Stipulated Agreement
and Order requires the District of
Columbia to conduct construction and
maintenance projects at the Blue Plains
facility which satisfy the claims in the
Complaint alleging violations of the
Operation and Maintenance provision of
the District’s National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Permit.
The proposed Agreement also provides
for relief which satisfies the claims in
the Complaint alleging violations of
Title II of the Act and the conditions of
EPA construction grant agreements,
which require a grantee to implement a
user charge system ensuring the proper
and efficient operation and maintenance
of the wastewater treatment facility.

The Department of Justice will
receive, for a period of thirty (30) days
from the date of this publication,
comments relating to the proposed
Stipulated Agreement and Order.
Comments should be addressed to the
Assistant Attorney General for the
Environment and Natural Resources
Division, Department of Justice,
Washington, DC 20530, and should refer
to United States v. District of Columbia,
DOJ Ref. 90–5–1–1–3598A.

The proposed Stipulated Agreement
and Order may be examined at the
Office of the United States Attorney,
District of Columbia, 555 4th Street,
NW., Washington, DC 20001; the Region
III Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency, 941 Chestnut Street,
Philadelphia, PA 19107; and at the
Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street,
NW., 4th Floor, Washington, DC 20005,
202–624–0892. A copy of the proposed
Stipulated Agreement and Order may be
obtained in person or by mail from the
Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street,
NW., 4th Floor, Washington, DC 20005.
In requesting a copy, please refer to the
referenced case and enclose a check in
the amount of $7.00 (25 cents per page

reproduction costs), payable to the
Consent Decree Library.
Joel M. Gross,
Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section,
Environment and Natural Resources Division.
[FR Doc. 96–9125 Filed 4–11–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–01–M

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree
Pursuant to the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Liability
Act

In accordance with Departmental
policy, 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby
given that a proposed consent decree
amendment in United States v. Eljer
Industries, Inc. and Eljer Manufacturing,
Inc., Civil Action No. C87–2693Y, was
lodged on March 14, 1996 with the
United States District Court for the
Southern District of Ohio. The proposed
consent decree amendment will resolve
claims against Eljer for stipulated
penalties accruing under the terms of a
1990 consent decree that settled claims
for violations of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42
U.S.C. 6901 et seq., at Eljer’s Salem
Ohio plant. Under the proposed Consent
Decree amendment, Eljer agrees to pay
$175,000 in stipulated penalties, and
provisions in the 1990 decree relating to
liability coverage for closure work at the
Salem plant are modified to provide a
‘‘best efforts’’ commitment to obtain
liability coverage.

The Department of Justice will
receive, for a period of thirty (30) days
from the date of this publication,
comments relating to the proposed
consent decree. Comments should be
addressed to the Assistant Attorney
General for the Environment and
Natural Resources Division, Department
of Justice, Washington, DC 20530, and
should refer to United States v. Eljer
Industries, Inc. and Eljer Manufacturing,
Inc., Civil Action No. C87–2693Y, and
the Department of Justice Reference No.
90–7–1–431A.

The proposed consent decree may be
examined at the Office of the United
States Attorney, Northern District of
Ohio, 208 Federal Building, 2 South
Main Street, Akron, Ohio 44308; the
Region 5 Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency, 77 West Jackson
Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60604–
3590; and at the Consent Decree Library,
1120 G Street, NW., 4th Floor,
Washington, DC 20005, 202–624–0892.
A copy of the proposed consent decree
may be obtained in person or by mail
from the Consent Decree Library, 1120
G Street, NW., 4th Floor, Washington,
DC 20005. In requesting a copy, please
refer to the referenced case and enclose
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a check in the amount of $2.00 (25 cents
per page reproduction costs), payable to
the Consent Decree Library.
Joel M. Gross,
Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section,
Environment and Natural Resources division.
[FR Doc. 96–9120 Filed 4–11–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–01–M

Notice of Lodging of Modified Consent
Decree Pursuant to the Clean Water
Act

In accordance with Departmental
policy, 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby
given that a proposed Modified Consent
Decree in United States v. City of
Hindman, Kentucky, and the
Commonwealth of Kentucky, Civil
Action No. 89–39 was lodged on March
26, 1996, with the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of
Kentucky, Pikeville Division. This
Modified Consent Decree replaces a
Consent Decree previously entered in
this matter on May 18, 1989. The 1989
Consent Decree resolved the United
States’ claims alleging violations of the
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.,
and its implementing regulations, and
provided for a civil penalty and
injunctive relief.

The Modified Consent Decree
obligates the City to construct a
wastewater treatment facility (the
‘‘facility’’) to insure consistent
compliance by the City with its NPDES
Permit. The City has also agreed to pay
$1,000.00 in stipulated penalties for
violations of the 1989 Consent Decree.

The Modified Consent Decree sets
forth a schedule to begin construction of
the facility by July 1, 1996, complete
construction of the facility by December
1, 1996, and achieve and maintain
continuous compliance with all NPDES
permit effluent limitations by March 1,
1997.

The Department of Justice will
receive, for a period of thirty (30) days
from the date of this publication,
comments relating to the proposed
Modified Consent Decree. Comments
should be addressed to the Assistant
Attorney General for the Environment
and Natural Resources Division,
Department of Justice, Washington, DC
20530, and should refer to United States
v. City of Hindman, Kentucky, et al.,
DOJ Ref. #90–5–1–1–2928A.

The proposed Modified Consent
Decree may be examined at the Office of
the United States Attorney, Eastern
District of Kentucky, 110 W. Vine St.,
Suite 400, Lexington, Kentucky 40507;
Office of the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, Region IV, 345
Courtland Street, NE., Atlanta, Georgia

30365; and at the Consent Decree
Library, 1120 G Street, NW.,
Washington, DC 20005, 202–624–0892.
A copy of the proposed Modified
Consent Decree may be obtained in
person or by mail from the Consent
Decree Library, 1120 G Street, NW., 4th
floor, Washington, DC 20005. In
requesting a copy, please refer to the
referenced case and enclose a check in
the amount of $6.25 (25 cents per page
reproduction costs), payable to the
Consent Decree Library.
Joel M. Gross,
Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section,
Environment and Natural Resources Division.
[FR Doc. 96–9122 Filed 4–11–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–01–M

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree
in Action to Enjoin Violations of the
Clean Air Act

In accordance with Departmental
Policy, 28 CFR 50.7, 38 FR 19029, notice
is hereby given that a Consent Decree in
United States v. Louisiana-Pacific
Corporation, Civil Action No. C–96–
1172 SAW, was lodged with the United
States District Court for the Northern
District of California on March 29, 1996.

The Consent Decree resolves claims
brought by the United States pursuant to
the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401 et
seq., against the Louisiana-Pacific
Corporation. The complaint alleges that
Louisiana-Pacific violated the
Prevention of Significant Deterioration
(‘‘PSD’’) Regulations promulgated
pursuant to Section 165(a) of the Clean
Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7475(a), and codified
at 40 CFR 52.21(a)–(w), when it failed
to obtain a PSD permit prior to
construction of a new recovery boiler at
its Samoa, California pulp mill. The
complaint also alleges that Louisiana-
Pacific violated the emissions limits set
forth in its Authority to Construct
permit, issued by the State of California
for the new recovery boiler.

The Decree requires Louisiana—
Pacific to pay a $97,500 civil penalty for
violations of the PSD regulations. The
Decree also requires Louisiana-Pacific to
comply prospectively with the PSD
regulations and to submit quarterly self-
monitoring data for a period of one year
after Louisiana-Pacific receives an
approved PSD permit.

The Department of Justice will receive
for thirty (30) days from the date of
publication of this notice written
comments relating to the Consent
Decree. Comments should be addressed
to the Assistant Attorney General,
Environment and Natural Resources
Division, Department of Justice,
Washington, DC 20530 and should refer

to United States v. Louisiana-Pacific
Corporation, DOJ Ref. No. 90–5–2–1–
1758.

The Consent Decree may be examined
at the Office of the United States
Attorney, Northern District of
California, Federal Building, 450 Golden
Gate Avenue, San Francisco, California;
at the Region IX Office of the
Environmental Protection Agency, 75
Hawthorne Street, San Francisco,
California; and at the Consent Decree
Library, 1120 G Street, NW., 4th Floor,
Washington, DC, (202) 624–0892. A
copy of the proposed consent decree
may be obtained in person of by mail
from the Consent Decree Library, 1120
G Street, NW., 4th Floor, Washington,
DC 20005. In requesting a copy, please
refer to the referenced case and enclose
a check in the amount of $5.00 (25 cents
per page reproduction costs), payable to
the Consent Decree Library.
Joel Gross,
Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section,
Environment and Natural Resources Division.
[FR Doc. 96–9124 Filed 4–11–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–01–M

Notice of Lodging of Amended
Consent Decree Pursuant to the Clean
Air Act

In accordance with Departmental
policy, 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby
given that a proposed amended consent
decree in United States versus Ohio
Power Company, Civil Action No. 5:94–
CV–100, was lodged on April 8, 1996,
with the United States District Court for
the Northern District of West Virginia.
The proposed amended consent resolves
this action brought under the Clean Air
Act against Ohio Power Company, the
owner and operator of an electrical
generation facility, known as the
Kammer Power Plant, located near
Moundsville, West Virginia.

The proposed amended consent
decree, which supersedes and replaces
the partial consent decree entered in the
same court on January 23, 1995, extends
until November 1998 the final deadline
for defendant’s compliance with the
sulfur dioxide (‘‘SO2’’) emission
limitation of its West Virginia State
Implementation Plan (‘‘SIP’’), in order to
allow West Virginia time to submit to
EPA a comprehensive, multiple-source
SIP revision request. The decree also
sets interim SO2 limits; requires
defendant to perform two supplemental
environmental projects consisting of the
installation of two low nitrogen oxide
(‘‘NOX’’) burners in another facility
owned by defendant; and provides for
the payment of a cash penalty of
$200,000.
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